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KIAMBERE MWINGI WATER AND SANITA'IION COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

I. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION

Background information
The Kiambere Mwingi Water & Sanitation Company Limited was established by the Companies Act
CAP 486 laws of Kenya on May 2009. The company is represented by the Kitui County CECM
responsible for Agriculture, Water & Inigation who together with the board of Directors are
responsible for the generat policy and strategic direction of the Company.

The Kiambere Mwingi Water & Sanitation Company Limited is domiciled in Kenya. Kitui County.
Mwingi Sub County and has satellite offices in Kyuso and Migwani nrarkets. Its water production
plant is situated at Kiambere Dam.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the company are to supply and distribute potable water and provide basic

sanitation within the Larger Mwingi region of Kitui County. Its Vision. Mission and Core values are

as follows: -

VISION:
> A model water and sanitation services provider

MISSION:

i To improve the wellbeing and quality of life of our stakeholders through effective provision of
quality reliable and affordable water and sanitation services.

CORE VALUES:
i Professionalism

). Respect

,- Integrity

r. Dedication

i Excellence

Directors
The Directors who served the entity during the year/period were as follows

APt'OI\'il..t) O\

Member (Alternate to CECM Water)

NAJ\IE POSITION
I Ms. lrene M. Mati Chairperson 13109t202t
1 Brig (Rtd) David M. Kambr.uri Merrrber

Member

t3t09t202t

J Ms. Angela R. Musyoka 1310912021

4 Mr. Anthony Naunga Member (Alternate to CECM Finance) 13t09t2021

5 Mr. Philip Nzula 13t09t2.021

l\
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I KEY E TITY IN FOITMATION (Continued)
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KIAMBERE MWINGI WATER AND SANITATION COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2023

I. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION (Continued)

Principal Legal Advisers
1. The Attorney General

State Law Office, Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 40112,

City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya

2. Miller & Company Advocates, Commissioners for Oaths & Notaries public
13tl' Floor, Bruce House, Standard Street,

P. O. Box 45707 - 00100, Nairobi, Kenya.

Tel: 020 2248461 I 0202248467

Emai I : info@milleradvocates.com

Yl



KIAMBERE INGI WATER AND SANITATION COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Repor and Financial Statements
F r thc ear e ed June 30 2023

II. THE B ARD OF DIRECTORS

Name Photo
Date of birth, key qualifications & experience

I

ta

v

Ms. I

Mart
rene
haM

ESK

Chair lad

D.O.B - l l December 1963.

Masters in Economic Policy Management -
Makerere University.

Bachelors Economics and Business Studies

(Honours) - Kenyatta University.

PHD Development Studies - (On Going) -
J.K.U.A.T.

Experienced Financial Analyst, Strategic Planner

and Economist in a wide field. work Experience

includes;

Managing Director - Africa Research and

Development Consultancy.

Lecturer - University of Nairobi, Catholic

University of Eastern Africa and Kenya Technical

Teachers College.

2

Brig. (Rtd)

Kambuni

Board Dire

)avid

ctor

I

d
t€i,

Born on 2310911955 . Has a Diploma in

International Studies and extensive training in the

Military and Armed Forces from 1979. He has

served in various Senior Military positions from

1979 to 2010.

vll
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f'or the ear ended June 30 2023
3

Ms. Angela
Rhoda

Musyoka
Board Director

Born on 141411973. Has a Bachelor of Commerce

(Finance), Diploma in Accountancy and

Currently pursuing CPA advanced level. She is

currently serving as the Executive Director for the

Center for Human Rights and Civic Education

(CHRCE). She also served as a Finance

officer/Administrator for the CHRCE and other

organizations from 1 988.

Mr. Anthony
Naunga
Alternate
Board Director

1

Has a Bachelor of Arts in Economics &
Sociology. He has served in administration as a

County Clerk, currently working as a Director -
Administration in the County Government of
Kitui., with experience of over 22 years.

Boln on 711211967

Mr. Philip
Nzula

Alternate
Board Director

5

Born on 301 121197 4 . Has Bachelor of Science

Soil, Water and Environmental Engineering with

over I 4 years of experience in water and

adnr inistration.

6

Born on 0611111964. Has Higher Diploma in

Mechanical Engineering and Msc Degree in

Engineering Management. Progressive work

experience ofover 20 years in various technical

and managerial positions.
Managing
Director

Mr. Paul

Kinuba
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KIAMBERE MWINGI WATER AND SANITATION COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

2

Nanrc

Photo Date of birth, key qualifications &
experience

I

Mr. Paul Kinuba

Ms. June M

M unyao

Mr. David Nzuki

III. MANAGEMENT TEAM

Finance & Administration Manager

Born on 5'h June 1975, Has a Bachelor of
Commerce (Finance option), Masters

Degree in Strategic Management and is a

Certified Public Accountant (CPAK). She

has over 1.5 years' experience in Financial
M anagem ent.

Technical Manager

Born on 23 August 198 I David M. Nzr.rki

has a Bachelor of Science in Water and

Environmental Engineering from Egerton

University. He has over ten years post-

graduation experience in water supply and

has been involved in implementation of
water projects in various parts of the

country.
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I

Managing Director

Born on 6'h November 1964. Has Higher

Diploma in Mechanical Engineering and

Msc Degree in Engineering Management.

Progressive work experience ofover 20

years in various technical & managerial

responsibilities.
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KIAMBEITI] MWINGI WATER AND SANITATION CO]IIPANY LIMITEI)

Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

MANAGEMENT TEAM (Continued)

4

Mr. Caleb

Mwanzia James
I

)

Ms. Penninah

Mutio

Company Accountant

Born on 23'd February 1984. Has a

Bachelor of Commerce (Finance). CPA 4,

KATC intermediate and final certificates

and a Diploma in Marketing. Work

experience oltwelve years as an

accountant.

I I urttan l{csources Ol'l'iccr

Born on 5tl'April 1976. Has a Secretarial

Certificate stage I and 2, Diploma in

Human Resource Management and a

Degree in Project planning and

management. Has work experience of l2
years as a Secretary and 7 years as Human

Resource Officer.
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KIAMBERE MWINGI WATER AND SANII'ATION COMPANY LIMITET)

Annual lleports and Financial Statements
For the ycar ended June 30, 2023

IV. CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The current Board of KIMWASCO which I chair comprises of five members two of which represent

the County government of Kitui as the Principal and three represent other stakeholder groups.

The company currently supplies water to about 30% of the population in Mwingi, which means 70%o

of the populatiofr rely on other unreliable sources of water. The reason for this is that KIMWASCO
relies on the Kiambere-Mwingi Water Supply Project which produces only 2,700mr of water per day

against the curront demand of20,000m3 per day. The project is also too old and prone to lrequent

breakages which make the water supply unreliable.

In addition. the cost of operation is too high due to high electricity bills incurred at Kiambere
Treatment Planl because of water pumping. Therefbre. the company relies on electricity subsidy from
the County government of Kitui in order to sustain operations.

The Board seek$ to address these problems in partnership with County governnlent of Kitui as the

principal. other development partners and stakeholders through the following initiatives:

I . Rehabilitate the phase I of the Kiambere - Mwingi water project and implement the phase 2 of the

project.

2.Take stock of all the water resources within the company's area ofjurisdiction with a view to
developing them to provide alternative source of water and relieve pressure on the Kiambere -

Mwingi rvater project.

3. Reduce cost of operation by installing solar power plants at main water treatment and purnping

facilities.

4. Improve opemtional effectiveness and efficiency by adopting new technology in all KIMWASCO
operations.

We believe that this will go a long way to improve water supply to the residents of Mwingi region.

Signatur

oete..(. .....,....... /,.. ,-*{-
1

l

lrene Martha Mati, ESK

Ilolrd Chair

\I



KIAMBtrRE MWINGI WATER AND SANI''A'I'ION COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Reports and Financial Statements

30,2023For the vear ended Jun e

V. REPORT OF THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

Kiambere-Mwingi water & Sanitation Company Limited Ltd (KIMwASCo) is in rhe busi,ess ofproviding potable water and basic sanitation-r".ri.., within the Mwingi region of the Kitui countyOur strategic objectives are:

Water and Sanitation Infrastructure Development

Operational Efficiency and Customer Satisfaction

Financial Sustainability

Institutional Development and Strengthening

Effecti ve Corporate Governance

Since its incorpo'ation in May 2009' the company has gone through difficult transition occasioned bythe water Acl2o02,the constitution of Kenya 2010 and the new water Act 2016. Despite myriaddifficulties posed by the transition, the cornpany has gradually grown both institutionally andfinancially' It has over the years developed ir, o*n operational systems that have enabled it to meetits mandate o1'providing water and sanitation services to its customers.

Itr concrete terms' the company has since the year 2019 increased water connections trom 3,7g2 to4'907'the people served have increased fiom 68,000 to about 109,000,000 and its net income frompositive Kshs. 19. I million to negarive Kshs. 3.9 million respecrively.

The main challenges that inhibit growth at the desired pace incrude lack of enough water to supply(production of 2'800m3/day against current demand of 20.000mi/day), high cost of elecrricity thatconstitutes 35% of o&M cost, Non-Revenue water (NRw) of about 39%o dueto old and dilapidateddistribution network and old inaccurate water meters.

There is also the chailenge of lack of skilled manpower a1 micrdre management level.

The foregoing notwithstanding, the Board, Management ancl staff are united in theircollective effortto improve elfectiveness and efficiency. Thus, concerted eftbrt has been rnade to reduce the NRW tooptimal level by installing accrtrate meters and addressing other causes. The company is also activelyengaged in seeking infrastructure investment support tiom the County government ot'Kitui ard otherdevelopment partners in order to increase water prod,ction and distribution.

we appreciate the support given by the county government of Kitui by paying electricity bills to thetune Kshs'25 million in the financial year 202212023 ancl hope that this ,uppon will continue in orderto sustain the services' Additionally, we hope our effort t' seek infrastructure investment support willbe successful.

xlt
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MANAGING DIRECTOR, Continued....
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KIAMBERE MWINGI WATER AND SANITATION COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2023

VI. STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES
FOR FY 2022t2023

Kiambere - Mwingi Water and Sanitation Company Ltd has 5 strategic themes and objectives withip
the current Strategic Plan for the FY 201812019 -FY 202212023. These strategic themes are as
follows:

Theme 1: Water and Sewerage infrastructure development
Theme 2: Operational efficiency and customer service
Theme 3: Financial sustainability
Theme 4: Institutional Capacity Strengthening
Theme 5: Corporate governance

Kiambere - Mwingi Water and Sanitation Company Ltd develops its annual work plans based on the
above 5 Themes. Assessment of the Board's performance against its annual work plan is done on a
quarterly basis. The Company achieved its performance targets set for the FY 202212023 period for
its 5 strategic pillars, as indicated in the diagram below:

Sections prone to
bursts replaced
with HDPE pipes

NO. STRATEGIC
-I'HEME

OB.IECTIVE KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

ACTIVITIES ACHIEVEMETS

I Water and
Sewerage
infrastructure
development

Increased
Water Supply
Coverage

Kilometers of
pipeline done

Replace Gi
pipes with
HDPE Pipes

Extend water
distribution net
works

Water distribution
networks
extended

2 Operational
efficiency and
customer
service

Reduce Non-
Revenue
Water

Non-Revenrre water
reduced

Install zonal
meters

9 zonal meters
installed

Constitute Non

- Revenue
Water Team

Non-Revenue
Management team
in place

Replace old
meters and

non-functional
meters

5 old and non-
functional meters
replaced

Improve
operational
Efficiency

Boreholes installed
with solar systems

Install solar
systems at
borehole
production
sites

xtv

3 (three) Solar
systems installed
at major bore
production sites



KIAMtsERE MWINGI WATER AND SANITATION COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Reporls and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES
FOR FY 202/2022 (Continued)

STRATEGIC
THEME

OBJECTIVE KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

ACTIVITIES ACHIEVEMtrl'S

Undertake
water quality
surveillance

Water storage tanks
cleaned

Clean water
storage tanks
every quarter

Water storage
tanks cleaned

Water quality tests

conducted monthly
Conduct
monthly water
quality tests

Water quality test
undertaken

Financial
sustainability

Adopt new
technology

Install
integrated
Financial
systems

Billing, Payroll
and Accounting
software in place

Strengthen
internal
systems

Reviewed Finance
and policy manual
in place

Review and

approval of
finance
manuals

Finance manual in
place

Implementation
of the manual

Finance manual
being
implemented

Increase
Current
Revenue Base

Increased water
connections

Installation of
new
connections

159 new
connections
installed

Increased water
Tankering services

Water trucking
to customers

Water trucked to
customers

Dormant
connections
activated

Improve
metering

Automated water
dispensing
machines installed
at water kiosks

Install
automated
water
dispensing
machines at
kiosks points

Water testing
machine installed
at the market
kiosk

Additional
assorted tools &
equipment
Procured

4 Institutional
Capacity
Strengthening

Provide
adequate
operating
Assets

Appropriate tools
and equipment in
place

Procure
additional tools
& equipment

-) All financial
systems integrated

Activated dormant
connections

Activating new
connections

\\



KIAMBERE MWINGI WATER AND SANITATION COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
I,'crr the r car entled .Junc -30 ,2023

STA'IEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES
FOR FY 2021/2022 (Continued)

Sensitization on
positive values
done

Memorandum &
Articles of
Assoc iatior-r

Amended

'lh
e performance targets have been tied with the performance contracts where each department had

agreed strategic plan activities which were to be captured in the departments pertbrmance contracts
and implemented in the 2022 - 2023 Financial year.

STRATEGIC
THEME

OBJECTIVE KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

ACTIVITIES ACHIEVEMIi'I'S

Improve
employees'
terms &
Condition of
service

Approve scheme of
service in place

Develop a
scheme of
service

Schemes of
Service
Developed

Improve
KIMWASCO
branding

Approved
Company Logo &
Active Website

Improve the
Company Logo
and have it
approved

Approved
Company Logo in
place

Review &
Improve
organization
culture

Values clearly
described &
explained

Perlbrm
change
management
activities

Improve HR
Structure &
systems

Operationalized
staff remuneration
structure

Update &
operationalize
Organizational
strLlcture

Updated &
operationalized
Organizetio r.ra I

strLlcture in place

5 Corporate
governance

Effective
cooperate
governance

Amended
Memorandum &
Articles which is

aligned with new
legislations

Amend the
Memorandum
& Articles of
Assoc iation

Board &
Management
trained on corporate
governance

Train Board
and
Management
on corporate
governance

Board &
Management
trained on
corporate
governarlce

New Board of
Directors recruited

Fill vacant
positions of the
Board of
Directors

Neu,Board
recruited through
competitive
procesS in line
with the Articles
and Memorandun.r
of association

x \/l



KIAMBERE MWINGI WATEI{ AND SANI.I.ITTION CON,IPANY LIMI'TBT)

Annual Reports and Financial Statements
Iior thc vcar cndcd .f unc 30, 2023

VI l. C() llPOlLATI,l (;OV EIiNAN CIi S]'r[t'!,]NI liN'I.

i. Board Sreetings
The Cornpany'{ noara of Director's are required to hold fcrur (4) full board meetings and

four (4) commiftee meetings as per BOD meeting caleudar. However. in the case of any
special motionsf the Board can call and hold a special rneeting.

Thc Board of Dfrectors held a total of 4 meetings c.luring th,: Financial Year2022/2023.

ii. Appoinflnent of Directors
The Directors ot'the C()nlilany sliall be a.ltpoilrtccl in line r,.'ith corporare goventance
guidelines establi.shed b1' the [{egulator l'roni tirne ui time. These rvitl be tlle representatives

of the stakcholder irtterest grorrps existing v,'ithin tlrc s,.'rvicc area of the Companl, identitled
in consultation with the Principal (County (lovernnrent ol Kitui). According to the natiorral
standards presctibing the size ol'the companics. rhr' lraxirr.r'.rm number of Directors oi'
KIMWASCO shall be five (5) but this tnay bc inclcni;ccl to a maximum of ninc (9) n,hen

the company qualifiers to join the large cornpany crielio)')/.

iii. Ilemovll r-rf Dircctol's
.A Director shall vacate otfice ifl
a) He is rctroved ficrm the ollice pursunnt tc ijection 18-5 of the Water Act 2016, or by spccial

resoluticin hy the comoany in Cencriil \4ccrirrg.

b) lle ccas$s trt L'e a Cilectorby virtr.recrf lleclion lS,l and I86 ofthe WaterAct 20l6
c) t'le becohres banklupt or makes an ilt'rangenrent of-conrposirion with his creditors
d) He becomes prohibited from being a tlirec tor b1, reason rtf any order undcr Section I 89 ol the

U/ater Abr 2016

e) He beconres of unsound mind
l) He lails rvithout any reasonable causc urui ',vitiroul ci)llscr)[ ol the boaLd rc, attcnd thruc (3)

consecu{ive tneetinlls of the Board atrr! tire Bor:rt1 resolvcs lhat. he:;hall ceirse io l)e a director

C) I-le resigfrs his ol)ice b1' noticr' in r,r'r'itinf.r ro the companv
h) Hc or rup persoirs to rvho has person":l t"res tiarnsects b',rsiness with the corirpany
i) He breadhes the (lr.rcle of Ethics & (lrindrrcr

j) He ceasds to be a representative ofthe stake holder entitl,that has appointed him/her
k) l{e is cl$rged u'ith an offence under tiic Anti-(loLruption and Econornic Crimes Act or Warer

Act l0l6
l) Flc becoines a clirector in any other \.\'ater s.ctot'institution

iv. Rolcs a{rl functlons of the BoerC

a) Appt,in{ng a }lanl:;ting Director attcl s,::tiolirauag.clnent lc,irni thrculllt c()tirp3Iitivc
adroltising ir, tltt: uational nre.lii.. l il..r'u i:-:. nrar. revr:ku arry such appoirrtrilcur I:
accdfr.lancr: with the tenns anr! cr;riilitir.rrir ,--.1'ernpio1,n1g6t of the colnpal)y.



KIAMBERE MWINGI WATER AND SANITATION COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30,2023

b)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (Continued)

c)

Responsible for implementation of the company's Memorandum and Articles of Association
and guide and control the functions of the Company

The Directors may within the PFM Act2012 and Standards issued in the Water sector,

exercise all the powers of the company to borrow or raise money and to mortgageor charge its

undertaking, property and uncalled capital and to issue debentures and other securities
whether outright or as security for any debt, liability or obligation of the company or any third
party.

Duly comply with the provisions of the Water Act 2016 or any statutory modification thereol
for the time being in force

The Directors may from time to time with the advice of the Managing Director and Company
secretary appoint any company or firm to be Attorney of the Company to carry out any legal

undertakings of the Company as it may be deemed fit.

d)

e)

v. Conflict of interest
A director, employee or their proxies shall not be eligible to trade and or in any way

contract with the Company for the provision of goods and services

xvlll
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EMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

A

s operational and financial performance

rnally generated income was Kshs. 19 m less than budgeted, mainly due to frequent
along the main pipeline and consistent power outages at Kiambere Treatment Plant

any has begun overhauling the weal< sections of the pipeline and replacing the weak
rone to bursts and is also engaging the County Government of Kitui to solarize
Treatment Plant

rall expenses were less by Kshs. 33.2 m. The high under expenditure was due to
ent of acquiring a high lift pump for K.T.P. which was to budgeted to cost Kshs. L6 rn,

strategic plan at a cost of Kshs. 2 m among others. The Company received electricity
m the County Government of Kitui amounting to Kshs. 24.9 m and paid KPLC Kshs
water production electricity. This resulted to some budgeted expenditures not to be

uring the period.

mpany reported Expenses amounting to Kshs. 153 million and revenues amounting to
4 million during the year under review

ulated revenue reserves deficit in 2022/2023 declined from negative 2.9m to negative
is was mainly due to a revaluation loss of L0.2 m incurred during the year. The current
ned from 4.0 in 2021, /2022 to 2.L in 2022 /2023.
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KIAMBERE MWINGI WATER AND SANITATION COMPANY LIMI'I'ED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS (Continued)
SECTION B

Entity's compliance with statutory requirements

There were no known non-compliance cases that could result in contingent liabilities. There
were no ongoing court cases and defaults that could lead to exposure.

SECTION C

Key proiects and investment decisions the entity is planning/implementing

The Contpany received Kshs. 4.1 million from the Water Sector Trust Fund for implementation of
CIPRA public sanitation and water supply projects at Kyuso town in conjunction with the County
Government of Kitui. The projects will be implemented in FY 2022/2023 andFY 2023/2024,

SECTION D

SECTION E

Material arrears in statutory/fi nancial obligations

There were no material arrears in statutory or financial obligations that could impact on the
operations of the company.

SECTION F

The entity's financial probity and serious governance issues

There were no financial improbity or governance issues that could negatively impact on the
company's operations.

Maior risks facing the entity
There are several operational risks which include;

1. Silting of the raw water intake at Kiambere dam
2. Damage of some sections of the main Kiambere-Mwingi water pipeline as a result of

massive soil erosion which results to high levels of NRW
3. Receding of water levels at the Kiambere dam to a point where water abstraction

/pumping is not possible during prolonged dry seasons

4. Frequent power outages at the Kianrbere Treatment Works
5. Lack ofan alternative source ofpower at our nrain production site
6. Low levels of production in comparison to the current high demand.
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Ix. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING
Kiambere - mwingi water & Sanitation Co Ltd exists to improve the wellbeing and quality of living

of its stake holders through effective provision of quality reliable and atlbrdable water and sanitation

services. Below is an outline of the organisation's policies and activities that promote sustainability.

i) Surtainability strategy and profile

As a rcsponsible corporate citizen. KIMWASCO embraces the policy of sustainable

developrtrent. As such, it strives to conduct its business in a sustainable manner by conserving

its water catchment areas, seeking NEMA consent before irrrplementing rnajor water and

sanitation projects as well as engaging the local cornmunity in planning and implementation

of projects.

The Company also educates its customers during public barazas on the importance of using

water effectively to ensure that wastage is eliminated so that this limited resource can at least

be shared equitably. They have also been educated on having enough storage facilities to store

water for tomorrow's use when there is no flow within the pipe network.

Use of solar energy has been emphasised to reduce on high cost electricity bills especially at

the borehole production sites hence making the projects sustainable.

ii) Environmentalperformance

The company seeks approvals from NEMA befbre implernenting any major water and

sanitation projects. Tree planting and gabion construction activities are conducted at least once

per year as a way of reducing environmental impact on the organizations product. Waste

management has also not been left behind as this is managed in collaboration with the County

Governntent through the relevant olfices mandated rvith the responsibilitl, of ensuring

effective waste management.

The f'act lhat the dernand fbr the commodity has been growing with increase in population,

there has been a shortcoming on waste water management because there is no sanitation

facility and especially in Mwingi Municipality. Waste has however been managed through thc

use of a Decentralised Treatment Facility(DTF) as well as working hand in hand with Mwingi

Municipality Management.

iii) Employee welfare

The Company puts emphasis on improving skills and managing careers through conducting

training. These trainings are paid fbr firlly by the Company and at the same tinre staff are
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING (Continuett)

encouraged to attend courses which can help them progress in their careers. As such, duty ofto
attend class and do exams are usually given to staft'.

The Conrpany has a performance management system where every staff is under performance

contracting. Annual performance contracts are signed at the beginning of every year and

appraisals done the basis upon which rewards and sanctions are given.

The Company has an occupational Safety and Health policy in place and complies with the

Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007. The Company premises are periodically

inspected by a body registered to inspect work environments where the outcome and

recommendations are implemented.

1'he company fills vacant positions competitively and gender issues are taken into

consideration. Stake holder engagement has not been left behind as employee satisfaction

surveys are done.

iv) Market place practices-

The organisation should outline its ef'forts to:

a) Responsiblecompetitionpractice.

The Company staff are not involved in politics. However, since politics is inevitable, any

signs of political interferences are addressed through the Board of Directors. Fair

competition and respect for everyone has not been a challenge so far. We are a water

Company which is licenced by the Water Services and regulatory Board and our prices are

regulated. We sell our commodity to water vendors at the regulated prices and to this end. rve

do not see them as competitors but as our counterparts in water service delivery.

b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations

The con.rpany prepares an annual budget and procurement plan the basis upon which

all procurement is anchored. To avoid pending bills. contracts are onll issued upon

confirmation of budgetary allocation and in line with the procurement plan. We strive

to pay our suppliers after every thirty days after supply ofgoods or services.

c) Responsible marketing and advertisement

Given that we deal with a very important and sensitive con.rmodity, we ensure effective

customer communication through public barazas. Alert messages are also sent through

xxtl
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messages to our customer using our billing software which ensures timely

ation to our customers. Advertisement for prequalificatior.r of suppliers and

tors is done competitively as these are placed in the daily newspapers

ct stewardship

n.rer rights and interests are always safeguarded through public participation and

tation through the customer representatives who are elected by the consumers

rate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

vider ofclean and safe drinking water and basic sanitation, we carry out our

with due diligence to ensure quality and safety of our products and services. We

to effectively play our role in nation building and take our corporate social

sibilities seriously
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X. REPORTOFTHEDIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements fbr the year ended
June 30, 2023 which show the state of the Kiambere - Mwingi Water and Sanitation Company
Limited affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the entity are to:

l. Supply and distribute potable water and provide basic sanitation.
2. Offer accompanying services such meter connection, meter calibration and servicing. repair or

replace defective service lines.
3. Bill for services rendered and collect revenue from customers.
4. Carry out preventive and corrective maintenance of water T/Works facilities and water

distribution networks.
5. Write proposals for water & sanitation project funding by prospective development agencies

Results

The results ofthe entity for the year ended June 30,2023 are set out on pages I - 39

Dividends

The company does not declare dividends to the Directors since they only hold shares in trust for the
County government of Kitui.

Directors

The members of the Board of Directors who served during the year are shown on page 3. In
accordance with Regulation 59(a) of the company's Articles of Association, one third of the board
members will retire each year and will be eligible for re-election.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the Company in accordance with Article
229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015 for the year/period ended June 30.
2023.

By Order of the Board

Name: Paul Kir.rr,rba Signatur ou,,,..Qs../3.[*+
Managing Director
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XI. STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' ITESPONSIBILITIES

Section 164 of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 and Company's Act 2015 Cap 486 require
the Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of the contpany. which give a true and tair
view of the staE of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year/period and the operating
results of the Company for that yearlperiod. The Directors are also required to ensure that the

company keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial
position of the company. The Directors ale also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
company.

The Directors Bre responsible for the preparation and presentation of the company's tlnancial
statements, whiah give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company fbr and as at the end ol
the financial year (period) ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility includes:

(i) maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to

be effective throughout the reporting period;

(ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time

the financial position of the company;

(iii) designing. implen.renting and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and

fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material
misstatemerts, whether due to error or fraud;

(iv) safeguarding the assets ofthe company;

(v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and

(vi) making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circr"rmstances.

The Directors accept responsibility for the company's frnancial statements. which have been prepared

using appropriatt accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudentjudgments and estimates. irr

conformity with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and in the manner required by the

PFM Act and tlp State Corporations Act. The Directors are of the opinion that the company's tlnancial
statements give a true and fair view of the state of company's transactions during the financial year

ended June 30, 2023 and of the company's financial position as at that date. The Directors fufther
confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained tbr the compan)r, which have been

relied upon in the preparation of the company's financial statements as well as the adequacy ol the

systems of internal financial control.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES (Continued)

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the company will not rernain a going

concern for at least the next twelve months tiom the date of this staternent.

Approval of the financial statements

The company's financial statements were approved by the Board on 28tl' September 2023 and signed on

its behalf by:

Irene Martha Mati, ESK

Board Chair

l)aul Kinuba

Managing Director
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r attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
y presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
ing standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect

on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
ions. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk

ified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and

systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial

lities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
ance Management AcL,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

Company Limited set out on pages 1 to 39, which comprise of the statement
I position as at 30 June, 2023 and the statement of profit or loss and other
nsive income, statement of changes in equity, stctement of cash flows and
of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended and a
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man ement environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
cha with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity

year und r revrew

The th parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and

I have a ited the accompanying financial statements of Kiambere Mwingi Water and
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The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements
reflects trade receivables balance of Kshs.21,642,580 which comprise of trade
receivables of Kshs.21,578,610 and staff receivables of Kshs.63,790. The net trade
receivables is net of bad debts, suspense account payments and provision for bad debts
of Kshs.2,985,487, Kshs.6,778,131 and Kshs.217,966 respectively all totalling
Kshs.9,981,584. However, the aging analysis shows receivables balances which are
more than 120 days of Kshs.23,744,147 .lt was also noted that the largest debtor was the
County Government of Kitui with an outstanding balance of Kshs.9,225,628. However,
Management has not demonstrated strategies being instituted to recover the long
outstanding debts.

ln the circumstances, the recoverability and fair statement of long outstanding debts
balance of Kshs. 21,642,580 could not be confirmed.

Report of the Auditor-Generol on Kiombere Mwingi llater and Sanilation Company Limited for the year ended
30 June, 2023
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osummary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in
accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35
of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Kiambere Mwingi Water and Sanitation Company
Limited as at 30 June, 2023 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards and
comply with and the Public Finance Managemenl Act,2012, the Companies Act, 2015
and the Water Act, 2016.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Unconfirmed Ownership of Assets

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 16(a) to the financial
statements reflects property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.33,684,941. lncluded
in the balance is Kshs.618,631 in respect of motor cycles which also includes two (2)
motor cycles acquired in February, 2018 valued at Kshs.322,000 whose log books were
not provided for audit. Further, Note 16(a) to the financial statements discloses assets
with estimated value of Kshs. 630,482,219 as at 2005 which were handed overto TAWSB
by TARDA in 2009. The water Company has been operating these assets which belong
to Tanathi Water Works Development Agency since May, 2009 but not handed over to
the Company officially. However, the assets have not been vested to County Government
of Kituiwhich owns the water Company.

ln the circumstances, the rightful ownership and validity of inclusion of the assets in the
disclosure Notes in the financial statements could not be confirmed.

2. Trade and Other Receivables



a

3. Over Statement of Non-Current Liabilities - TWWDA Licensee Remuneration

The statement of financial position reflects Tanathi Water Works Development Agency
(T\ A//DA) licensee fee balance of Kshs.19,764,981. Review of documents provided for
audit review revealed that the Company and the service provider upon reconciliation
acknowledged outstanding balance was Kshs.5,894,026 resulting in an unexplained and
unreconciled variance of Kshs. 1 3,870,955.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and fair statement of Tanathi Water Works
Development Agency licensee fee balance of Kshs.19,764,981 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kiambere Mwingi Water and
Sanitation Company Limited Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of
Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in
accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial
statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final income budget
and actualon comparable basis of Kshs.189,797,000 and Kshs.149,422,540 respectively
resulting to an under-funding of Kshs.40,374,460 or 21o/o of the budget. Similarly, the
statement reflects final budget expenditure and actual on comparable basis of
Kshs.186,209,714 and Kshs.153,O37,470 resulting to under absorption of
Kshs.33,172 ,244 or 18o/o of the budget.

The underfunding and under-expenditure absorption affected the planned activities and
may have impacted negatively on service delivery to the public.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

Report of the Audilor-General on Kiambere Mwingi Water and Sanitation Company Limited for the year ended
30 June, 2021

3

ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources and Report on Effectiveness
of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance which have remained unresolved
as at 30 June, 2023.
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Review of available documents and records revealed that during the year under review,
the Company produced a total of 996,573 cubic meters (M3) of water out of which only
604,381 M3 were billed to customers leaving out the balance of 391 ,742 M3 unbilled
representing 39% of the production as Non-Revenue Water (NRW) which is equivalent
to Kshs.48,967,750 based on the average selling price per M3 of Kshs.125. The NRW
exceeded the threshold of 25o/o set in the Water Services Regulatory (WASREB)
guidelines by 14oh. No tangible measures have been put in place by the Management to
reverse the trend.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. Non-Compliance with National Cohesion and lntegration Act

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and as disclosed in Note
10 to the financialstatements reflects staff costs amount of Kshs.43,449,585. Review of
the human resource data and records revealed that the water Company had a total of
forty-six (46) employees out of which, thirty-five (35) or 760/o of the workforce were from
the dominant ethnic community in the County. This is contrary to the provisions of Section
7(1) and (2) of the National Cohesion and lntegration Act, 2008 which requires that no
public establishment shall have more than one third of its staff from the same ethnic
community.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. Failure to File Annual Returns with the Registrar of Gompanies

Review of the Company's records revealed that the Company was incorporated in 2009.
Management did not however, provide evidence of filed annual returns with the Registrar
of Companies as is provided for by the law. No explanation was provided by Management
for the failure to file returns.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kiambere Mwingi lltater and Sanitation Company Limited for lhe year ended
30 June, 2023
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REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution and based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lavyfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources, I confirm that nothing else has come to my
attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been applied lawfully and
in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Non-Revenue Water



4. Use of Outdated Tariffs

Review of available documents and records, revealed that the Company produced a total
of 996,573 cubic meters (M3) of water. However, review of the Company's tariff revealed
that the water tariff structure in use relates to the period between 1 January, 2011 to
30 June,2013. However, the Water Company has continued using the tariff, despite
having lapsed ten (10) years ago. There was no evidence of extension of the period and
the continued use of the expired tariff.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAl) 4000. The standard requires that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance, I confirm that
nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that internal controls, risk
management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Excessive Electricity Costs

The statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and as disclosed in Note
11 to the financial statements reflects general and operational expenses of
Kshs.81,993,983, which includes power costs of Kshs.53,046,652. The expenditure is
65% of the total general and operating expenses, thus denying other programs funds for
implementation. The high-power cost may not be sustainable.

ln the circumstances, the excessive power costs may have impacted negatively on the
profitability and sustainability of services by the Company

2. Lack of lT Environment

Review of the company's lnformation and Communication Technology (lCT) revealed that
it has ICT infrastructure which includes computers and laptops. Walkthrough tests on
lnformation Technology (lT) and other controls revealed the following weaknesses;

Report of the Auditor-General on Kiambere Mwingi lYater and Sanitalion Company Limited for the year ended
30 June, 2023
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The Company does not have strong lnformation Communication Technology (lCT)
controls and a functional lT department despite operating lnformation Technology
(lT) enabled environment like billing software.

There were no approved policies on lnformation Technology security including
an lT continuity plan. Consequently, the critical data/information may not be
recovered in case a disaster occurs.

The Company does not have an lT strategic or steering committee which could
result in none implementation of lT governance, as part of enterprise governance.

The Company lacks an lT security policy, and thus no clear direction on how to
maintain information security and how to safeguard its assets.

The management has not instituted integrated policies and procedures to guide
key financial processes and controls for the management of: revenue, expenditure,
personnel expenditure, inventory and liabilities in the Sage software. The
processes are not integrated and thus some components of the software are still
manual. This may lead to manipulation of the data and risk of misrepresentation.

Lack of training program to build lT capacity.

There is no ICT officer responsible for overseeing the operations of lT in the
Company.

Lack of a formally documented and approved process to manage upgrades and
system changes made to all financial/performance information systems.

ix. The backups were not stored in a secure offsite storage facility. Further, the server
room is accessible to anyone posing a risk to the company information.

ln the circumstances, the absence of a policy document, may affect the effectiveness of
the operations of the entity's business processes on delivery of services to the public in
an effective and efficient manner.

3. Lack of a Disaster Recovery Plan

Review of the Company records, processes, systems and operations revealed that the it
does not have a disaster recovery plan and has not implemented a backup and retention
strategy. This exposes the safety of the Company's data in the event of occurrence of
risk.

ln the circumstances, the Company may be exposed to business disruptions in case of a
disaster.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls) 2315 and 2330. The standards require that I plan and perform
the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of internal
controls, risk management and overall governance were operating effectively, in all

Report of the Auditor-General on Kiambere Mwingi llater and Sanitation Company Limited for the year ended
30 June, 2023
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material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

As required by Companies Act, 2015, I report based on my audit that:

i. I have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ii. ln my opinion, adequate accounting records have been kept by the Company, so
far as appears from the examination of those records.

iii. The Company's financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records
and returns.

Responsibilities of the Management and the Board of Directors

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards and
for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to liquidate the Company or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of lhe Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-Genera!'s Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to frauci or error,

Report of the Auditor-General on Kiambere Mwingi l ater and Sanitation Company Limited for the year ended
30 June, 202t
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and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in acqordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the auoit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSA|s will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1) (a) of the Public AuditAct, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
Company's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

r ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Report of the Auditor-General on Kiambere Mwingi Water and Sanitation Company Limited for the year ended
30 June, 2023
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Report of the luditor-General on Kiambere Mwingi lltater and Sanitation Company Limited for the year ended
30 June, 202 3

I

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the applicable basis of
abcounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a maierial uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controlthat are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

AUDITOR-GENERAL
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XIII.STATEMENT OF PROFIT OII LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVB INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Note 2022-2023 2021-2022
I(shs

REVENUE
6 I t7 ,421 ,699 t04,103,724

Grants income 7 29,083,391 77,429,922
Other income r,31 r,760
Finance inconre 9 702.588
TOTAL REVENUE 119,122,510 182,8,15,{06

EXPENSES
Staff costs 43,449.s85
General and O eratlons ex tlSCS ll 81.993.983 97,539.967
Board ex NSES t2 2,1 82,s00 3,469,800
Maintenance ex enses t3 17,229.978 12,138,42 r

De reciation and amortization ex l4 8,057,823 5,176,860
Finance costs l5 r 23,601 1)) ) ct)

TOTAL EXPENSES 153,037,{70 158,091,.169

21,753,937PROFIT/ LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (3,61.1,930)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/ CREDIT (2,$11,,922)

LOSS AFTEIT TAXATION (3,61 .1,930) 22,112,015

Revaluations 28 (t0,194,236)

TOTAL COMPIIEHENSIVE INCOME FOR I'HE
YEAIT

( 13,809, I 66) 22,112,015

Kshs

Operating revenue

tJ 2.214,862

l0 39,644.t29

penses

PnoFrT(
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XIV. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

Total Non-Current Liabilities

The financial statements were approved by the Board on 28th September 2023 and signed on its
behalf by:
Managing Dircctor
Narre : Paul Kinuba

Sign

Financc & Admin. Manalru'r
Nu*., CtlA4.tcs M U-rotn

Board Chair
Nanrc: Irene Mati

Sign

I('I'AK NO te31

o.SJo3lrq++
Sign
Date

Note 2022t2023 202r/2022
Kshs Kshs

Non-Current Asse ts
Pro lant and e ul ment l6 (a) 33,684,941 26,141.364
Intan ible assets t7 2,075,119 2,075,119

Total Non-Current Assets 35,760,060 28,21 6,lll3

Current Assets
Inventories l8 2,270,237 3,980.s6s
Trade and receivables l9 (a) 21,642,580 26,549.507

1e (b) 26.143
Bank and cash balances 20 32.484.538 3 t.091.498

Total Current Assets 56,,123,{98 61,621,57tJ

TOTAL ASSETS 92,183,558 89,838,053

Ca ital and Rcserves
Ordi share ca ital 2t r 00,000 100.000
Ca ital reserve 22 4,718,945 4,718.945
WSTF 31.335.169

25,660,s99
3 l, r 66,984

Develo ment rant 24 21,577,686
Retained earnin S 30 (16,742,603) (2,933,437)
Ca ital and Reserves 45,072,110 5-1,630,17ti

Non-Current Liabilities
TWWDA 25 (b) 19.764.981 19,764,981

19,76-1,981 19,76{,981

Current Linbilities
Trade and other a ables l() 17,432,272 5,900,699

27 9,914,195 9,542,,195
Total Current Liabilitics 27,316,167 15,'l-12,89-l

89,838.,053TOTAL E UITY AND LIABILITIES 92,183,559

Date:.Q SlzorV
2

Dat

ASSETS

Trade prepayments

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

:)

Water deposits
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xv. STATIIMENT OF CHANGES lN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

sharc capital
Capital
reserve

Reta ine d
earnrngs

Capital/
Development
Grants/Fund

WSTF
Total

At.Iuly 1,2021 100,000 4,718,945 (25,075,452) 5,463,169 29,485.'136 14,691,798

Total comprehensive income 22.142,015 22.t42,015

CGoK (CIPRA) r6.114.517 16.114.517

WSTF (CLSG) 1 .681 ,848 r.68 r.848

At.lune 30,2022 100,000 nl,718,915 (2 33,437) 21,577,686 3l ,166,984 54,630,178

{,71 8,9{5At June 30.2022 r 00.000
Y

(2,933,137\ 21,,577,686 I .'I 66,98.1 54,630,,178

'l'otal compre hensive income (13.809,r66) (13,809.r66)

WSTF (CLSG) 1 68.1 85 I 68.1 85

WSTF (CIPRA) 4.082.91 3 4.082.91 3

At .lune 30,2023 r 00,000 .1,,718,9{5 (16,742,603) 25,660.'599 -11.335,I 69 45,072,1l0

-

-t

t_

k
I
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XVI. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOIT TI{E YEAII ENDED 30.IUNE 2023

Board ex enses

152,t1711,6911

Note 2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs Kshs

CASH I.'LOWS IIROM OPEIIATING ACl'IVIl'IES
Recei ts
o eratln revenue 6 117,42t,699 104,103.724
Other income u 2.2t4.862 t.3l 1.760
Finance incor.ne () 702.588
Grants 7 29,083.39 r 77.429.922
C'ustomer de SItS 27 437,000 3s8.500
Total recei ts I {9,859,5.10 183,203,906

Pay men ts

Staff costs l0 43.449.585 39,644,t29
General and opera tions expenses ll 8l,993.983 97.539.967

t2 2,182,500 3.469.800
Maintenance t3 17.229.978 12.138.421
Finance costs l-s l 23.60 I 1)) )ct)
Refund ol customer de osrts 29 65.000 65.000
Total il ments I J5,0{.1.'6-17
Net cash From/(Used in) Operating Activities .1,8 1.1,893 30,,221,296

Cash Flou's lrom Investin g Activities
Purchase Of Pro . Plant And E l-l I lnent PPE) l6(a) (6,708,190) (6,e34,403 )
Net Cash From/ Uscd ln I nvcstin Act iv itics (6,708,,1 90) (6,93{,103)

Cash Florvs from Financin Activities
CGoK - CIPRA J- 16,I 1,1,5 l7
WSTF - CIPRA 24 4,082,913
Electrici ar rnents J-) (796,s77) (24,204,074)
Nct Cash l'rom/ (Used In) Iiinancing Activitics 3,286,336 (8,089,557)
I ncrease/ Decrcase In Cush And Cash E uivalcnts I,393,039 l5,2oo,-136

Cash And Cash Equivalents At Beginning Of Year 20 3l ,091 ,,199 15,891 ,I 62

Cash And Cash E uivalcnts At End Of '[hc Year 20 32,{8.1,538 3 I ,091 ,-19{l

+

I

I

I

I
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Original
hudgct

A di us tmcn ts Final budget Actu:rl on
comparahlc hirsis

Perfo rma nce
difference

"h of
utilization

2022-2023 2022-2023

Il,e vcn ue lr,shs

r20.000.000

Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs -/o

o eratinu Revenue r i.555.000 r 33.555.000 t11.421.699 ( 16.133.301) ( 12)

Grants _50..100.000

5.842.000

29.083.391 (21.3 r6.609) (42)

2.917.450 (2.924.550) (50)

Total llcven ue 176.2{2,000 t3,555,000 189.,797,000 I {9,.122,540 ({0,37.1,{60) (21)

Iir enscs

Stafl Cosrs s0.985.7 l4 ( 100.000) 50.885.714 7,436.129 1 5

Board I.-r cnses 3.36 1 .500 r00.000 3.461 .500 1.279,000 37

General and operations []x cllscs 1.955.000 95.842,500 81.993.983 13.848.517 t4

r 7.300.000 35.870.000 18.640.022 52

Dcp rcciation and arnorlization 8.057.823 (8,057,823) ( 100)

Financc costs 150.000

166,954.714

r 23.601 26.399 t8

Total llccu rrent Expenditure t 9,255,000 186,209,'71,1 33,172,244 t 7.8

Prolit or Loss 9,2117,286 5.'700,000 -3,,587,286 (4.'078,930) (7,,202,216) (201)

Cla iral I.l \ cnditurc (5.'700,000) 3,{5o,ooo 6,,700,-331 (3,250,331) (e4)

Total Erpenditurc I 76' I 0J,71 .l 189,659,71,1 I60,201,801 29,921,913 16

xvll S'I'ATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMO I.]NTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Note: PFM Act section 81(2) ii and iv requires a National Govemment entity to present appropriation accounts showing the status of

each votc compared with the appropriation for the vote and a statement explaining any variations between actual expenditure and the

sums voted. IFRS does not require enrities complying with IFRS standards to prepare budgetary information because most of the

entities that app ly IFRS are private entities that do not make their budgets publicly available. However. for public sector entities. the

PSASB has considered the requirements of the PFM Act. 2012 which these statemen

information would provide to the users of the statements and the fact that the public

decided to include this statement under the IFRS compliant financial statements.

ts comply with. the importan ce that the budgetary

-1

entities make their budgets publicly available and

2{122-21123 2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2023

50.400.000

Other incorne s.842.000

43.449.585

2,r 82,500

93.887.500

Maintcnancc r 8.570.000 t7.229.978

150-000

I 53,,501 ,.170

9.'150,000
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XVIII.NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA'TEMBNTS

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

Kiambere Mwingi Water and Sanitation Company Limited is established by and derives its
authority and accountability from CAP 486 of Companies Act that was repealed by the
Companies Act 2015. The entity is wholly owned by the County government of Kitui ald is
domiciled in Kenya. The entity's principal activity is to supply and distribute porable water and
provide basic sanitation within the Larger Mwingi region of Kitui County.
For Kenyan Companies Act reporting purposes, the balance sheet is represented by the statement
of financial position and the profit and loss account by the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in these financial statements.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PIIEPAIIATION

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except ibr the nreasurement
at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment, marketable securities and
financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and
actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation of frnancial statements in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) allows the use of estimates
and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying
the entity's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree ofjudgement or complexity.
or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements. are disclosed in
Note 4.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the
functional and reporting currency of the Kiambere Mwingi Water and Sanitation Company
Limited.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act. the State
Corporations Act and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The accounring
policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

6
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The amendments clarifu that for the purpose of assessing whether a

contract is onerous. the cost of fulfilling the contract includes both the

incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other

costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. They are effective for

contracts for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations on

or after 1 January 2022.

The amendment. applicable to annual periods beginning on or after I

January 2022. provides a subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter

later than its parent with an exemption relating to the measurement of

its assets and liabilities. The exemption does not apply to components

of equity.

Amendment to IFRS I

titled Subsidiary as a First-

time Adopter

7

The amendments are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after January l,

2022. Early application is permitted.

The amendments, applicable to annual periods beginning on or after I

January 2022. prohibit a company from deducting from the cost of

property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items

produced u'hile the company is preparing an asset for its intended use.

Instead. a company will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost

in profit or loss

Amendments to IAS l6

titled Property, Plant and

Equipment: Proceeds

before Intended Use

(issued in May 2020)

The amendments are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after January l.

2022. Early application is permitted

The amendments are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after January l,

2022. Early application is permitted.

.3. AI'PLICATION OF NEW ANI) REVIST]D INTEITNATIONAL FINANCIAL IIEI'ORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

i) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended 30 June 2023

Effective DateDescriptionTitle

Amendments to IAS 37

titled Onerous Contracts -

Cost of Fulfilling a

Contract (issued in May

2020)
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The Directors have assessed the applicabtc standards and amendmcnts. Based on their assessment of impact of application of

thc above, thcy do not expect that there rvill be a significant impact on the company's financial statements.

S

The amendments are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after January l.

2022. Early application is permitted

Thc amendment. applicable to annual periods beginning on or

January 2022. to IFRS 9 clarifies the fees that a company includes

u,hen assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial

liability are substantially different from the terms of the original

financial liability.

after IAmendment to IFRS 9

titled Fees in the'10 per

cent'Test for

Derecognition of Financial

Liabilities

The amendments are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after January l,

2022. Early application is permitted.

The amendment. applicable to annual periods beginning on or

January 2022. to IAS 4l removed the requirement to exclude taxation

cash flows when measuring fair value. This amendment aligned the

requirements in IAS 4l on fair value measurement with those in other

IFRS

after IAmendment to IAS 4l

titled Taxation in Fair

Value Measurements

(issued in May 2020 as

part ofthe Annual

Improvements to IFRS

Standards 2018-2020)

Titlc Dcscript ion Effective Datc
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS),

Continued...
lt. Nerr ancl amcndcd stantlards and inte rprctations in issuc but not vet effectivc in thc l ear cndcd 30 ,lunc 2023

The amendments. applicable to annual periods beginning on or

afler I st January 2023. require entities to disclose their material

accounting policy inlbrnation rather than their significant

accounting policies

9

The amendments are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after January l,

2023. Earlier appl ication is permitted.

IAS I "Presentation of Financial Statements" sets out the overall

requirements for financial statements. including how they should be

structured, the minimum requirements for their content and

overriding concepts such as going concem, the accrual basis of

accounting and the currenl./non-current distinction. The standard

requires a complete set of financial statements to comprise a

statement of financial position. a statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income. a statement of changes in equity and

a statement of cash flows.

IAS I 
-Presentationof

Financial Statements

The amendments are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after January l,

2023. Earlier appl ication is permitted.

Amendments to IAS I

titled Disclosure of

Accounting Pclicies

(issued in February 2021)

'Iitle
I

Dcscription Effective Date

Amendments to IAS I

titled Classification of

Liabilities as Current or

Non-current (issued in

January 2020)

The amendments. clarifu a criterion in IAS I for classi$ing a

liabiliry as non-current: the requirement for an entity to have the

right to defer settlement of the liability for at least l2 months after

the reporting period.

The amendments are effective for annual

periods beginning on or after January I,

2023. Earlier appl ication is permitted.
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The Directors do not plan to apply any of the above until they become effective. Based on their assessment of the potential

impact of application of the above, they do not expect that there rvill be a significant impact on the company's financial

statements.

iii) Early adoption of standards

The Company did not early adopt any new or amended standards in the reporting period

The amendments are effective for annual

reporting periods beginning on or after

January l, 2023. Early adoption is

permitted.

IAS I 2, "lncome Taxes" implements a so-called 'comprehensive

balance sheet method' of accounting for income taxes which

recognizes both the current tax consequences of transactions and

events and the future tax consequences of the future recovery or

settlement of the carrying amount of an entity's assets and

tiabilities. Differences between the carrying amount and tax base of

assets and liabilities. and carried forward tax losses and credits, are

recognized, with limited exceptions, as deferred tax liabilities or

deferred tax assets, with the latter also being subject to a'probable

profits'test.

IAS l2 - Income Taxes

The amendments are effective for annual

reporting periods beginning on or after

January l, 2023. Early adoption is

permitted.

The amendments. applicable to annual periods beginning on or

after 1st January 2023. introduce a definition of 'accounting

estimates' and include other amendments to IAS 8 to help entities

distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in

accounting estimates.

IAS 8-

Policies,

E,stimates

Accounting

Errors and

l0

Effcctive DateDescriptionTitle
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NOTES'I'O THE FINANCIAL STA'I'EMENTS (Continued)

4. SUMMAII.Y OF SI(;NIFICANT ACC]OT]NTING POLICIES
The principle accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below:

a) Revenuo recognition
Revenuo is recognised to the extent that it is probable that firture economic beneflts witl flow
to the Kiambere Mwingi Water and Sanitation Company Linrited and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue is recognised at the fair value of consideration received or
expected to be received in the ordinary course ofthe Con.rpany's activities, net ofvalue-added
tax (VAT), where applicable, and when specific criteria have been met lbr each of the
Company's activities as described below.

ii) Service charge income is recognized monthly after water meters are installed at the
cuCtomers' premises and billed by the Company.

iii) Grants from County and National Governments are recognised in the year in rvhich
the Conrpany actually receives such grants. Recurrent grants are recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income. Developmentlcapital grants are recognized in the
stalement of financial position and realised in the staten.rent of comprehensive incorne
over the useful life ofthe assets that has been acquired using such funds.
The County Government of Kitui paid for electricity.
Tanathi Water Works Development Agency paid for Drought Mitigation {irnds.
WSTF paid for UBSUP project.
KIWASH paid for water meters and ERP system grant.

iv) Finance income comprises interest receivable from bank deposits and investment in
securities, and is recognised in profit or loss or.r a time proportion basis using the
eflective interest rate method.

v) Miicellaneous income like meter reconnection fee and penalties is recognized when the
serfice has been provided and billed.

lt

i) Revenue from the sale of goods and services is recognised in the year in which the
Company delivers services to the customer, the customer has accepted the services and
coltrectability ofthe related receivables is reasonably assured.
Holvever, the amounts are subjected to adjustments when errors are realized, in relation
to meter readings and subseqr,rent billings. Non-Revenue water is not recognized as

incbme since it's not billed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

b) In-kindcontributions
In-kind contributions are donations that are made to Kiambere Mwingi Water and Sanitation
Company Limited in the fbrm of actual goods and/or services rather than in money or cash
terms. These donations n.ray include vehicles, equipment or personnel services. Where the
financial value received for in-kind contributions can be reliably determined, the Company
includes such value in the statement of comprehensive inconre both as revenue and as an
expense in equal and opposite amounts; otherwise, the contribution is not recorded.

c) Property, plant and equipment
All categories of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Certain categories of property, plant and equipment are
subsequently carried at re-valued amounts, being their fair value at the date of re-valuation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Where re-measurelnent
at re-valued amounts is desired, all items in an asset category are re-valued through periodic
valuations carried out by independent external valuers.
Increases in the carrying amounts of assets arising from re-valuation are credited to other
comprehensive income. Decreases that off'set previous increases in the carrying amcunt ol the
same asset are charged against the revaluation reserve account; all other decreases are charged
to profit or loss in the income statement.
Gains and losses on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing the proceeds from the disposal with the net carrying amount of the items, and are
recognised in profit or loss in the inconre staternent.

d) Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment
Freehold land and capital work in progress are not depreciated. Capital work in progress
relates mainly to the cost of ongoing but incomplete works on buildings and other civil works
and installations.
Depreciation on property, plant and equipnrent is recognised in the inconre sratement on a
straight-line basis to write down the cost of each asset or the re-valued amount to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The annual rates in use are:

Water kiosks lO%
Storage tanks 2.5%
Decentralized Treatment Facility 2.5o/o
Pipes and fittings 12.5%
Motor vehicles, including motor cycles 25%
Computers and related equipment 33.3%
Office equipment, furniture and fittings 12.5%
Kiambere treatment plant & equipment 2.5o/o
A full year's depreciation charge is recognised both in the year of asset purchase and in the
year ofasset disposal.

t2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
e) Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise purchased computer software licenses, which are capitalised on the
basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software. These costs are

amortized over the estimated useful lif'e of the intangible assets fiom the year that they are

available for use, usually over three years.

The annual rates r.rsed are as follows:
Computer software 33.3%

f) Amortidation and impairment of intangible assets

Amortization is calculated on the straight-line basis over the estirnated useful lit'e of computer
software of three years.

ERP system recently installed has an infinite useful life, therefore has not been amortized.

g) Investment propert)
Investm(nt property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
(including property under construction for such purposes), is measured initially at cost.
including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured
at fair v4lue. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are

included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. An investment property is

derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and ho future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognized.

l3

h) Right Ofuse asset
The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability.
lease payments made at or before the commencement day. less any lease incentives received
and any lnitial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accr"rmulatecl

depreciatiqn and impairment losses. Whenever the entity incurs an obligation fbr costs to
dismantle land remove a leased asset. restore the site on which it is located or restore the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision
is recogni{ed and measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-ot'-use
asset, the tortt u.. included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term
and useful life ofthe underlying asset. Ifa lease transfers ownership ofthe underlying asset or
the cost ol th" ,ight-of-use asset reflects that the entity expects to exercise a purchase option,
the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The
depreciati(n starts at the commencement date of the lease.'lhe right-of-use assets are presented

as a separa[e line in the statement of financial position.



KIAMBERE MWINGI WATER AND SANITA'I'ION COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

NOl'ES TO THE FINANCIAL STA1'EMIiN'I'S (Continued)

i) Fixed interest investments (bonds)

Fixed interest investments refer to investment funds placed under Central Bank of Kenya

(CBK) long-term infrastructure bonds and other corporate bonds with the intention ol

earning interest income upon the bond's disposal or maturity. Fixed interest investments are

freely traded at the Nairobi Securities Exchange. The bonds are measured at fair value

through profit or loss.

j) Quoted investments

Quoted investments are classified as non-current assets and comprise rnarketable securities

traded freely at the Nairobi Securities Exchange or other regional and international securities

exchanges. Quoted investments are stated at fair value.

k) Unquotedinvestments

Unquoted investments stated at cost [rnder uon-current assets, and comprise ecluity shares

held in other Government owned or controlled entities that are not quoted in the Sectrrities

Exchange.

l) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the low,er of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories

conrprises purchase price, import duties, transportation and handing charges. and is

determined on the weighted average method.

m) Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are carried at the anticipated realisable value. An estimate is nrade tbr

doubtful receivables based on the review ofall outstanding amounts at year end.

Trade receivables are impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has

occurred after the initial recognition of the receivables, and that the loss event has an

impact on the future cash flows on the receivables that can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that trade receivables are impaired could include def'ault or delinquency

by a customer. indications that a customer will enter bankrr,rptcy as tvell as observable

changes in national or local econor.r.ric conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

An estimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amount at

the year end. Bad debts are written offafter all efforts at recovery have been exhausted.

1.1
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Annual Il.eports and Financial Statements
I,'or tlte car cnded June 30 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
n) Taxatbn

i) Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are rneasured at the amount

expectfd to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws

used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the

reportipg date in the area where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net

assets ond not in the statement of financial performance.

Current income tax assets and liabilities lbr the current period are measurecl at the arnount

expecled to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax lau,s

used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted. at the

reporting date in the area where the Entity operates and generates taxable income.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes

provisions where appropriate.

Curre t income tax workin s

The Company had a deficit of Kshs. 3.614.930 during the year under preview ar.rd hence did

not incur income tax.

During the Financial year under review. the Company received Kshs. 14.ll0 and Kshs.

4.082.913 from the County Government of Kitui and Water Sector Trust Fund respectively.

These funds were for Drought Mitigation and construction of a Public Sanitation Facility at

Kyuso respectively.

o) Deferded tax
There was no deferred tax as at the end ofthe reporting period

l5

p) Borrotving costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of

qualiSing assets. which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period ol time to get

ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost ofthose assets, until such time as

the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. To the extent that variable

rate borrowings are used to finance a qualifying asset and are hedged in an effective cash

flow liedge ofinterest rate risk, the effbctive portion ofthe derivative is recognized in other



KIAMBERE MWINGI WATER AND SANITA'I'ION COMPANY LIMITET)

Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

comprehensive income and reclassified to profit or loss when the qualitying asset intpacts

profit or loss. To the extent that fixed rate borrowings are used to finance a qualilying asset

and are hedged in an effective fair value hedge of interest rate risk, the capitalized

borrowing costs reflect the hedged interest rate. All other borrowirlg costs are recognized in

profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on

call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which

are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insigniticant risk ol
changes in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at various Commercial

Banks and M-Pesa at the end of the reporting period. For the purposes of these financial

statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to

atrthorized public officers and/or institutions wl.rich were not surrendered or accounted fbr at

the end ofthe financial vear.

r) Borrowings
Interest bearing loans and overdrafts are initially recorded at tair value being received. net of

issue costs associated with the borrowing. Subsequently, these are measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest rate method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into

account any issue cost and any discount or premium on settlement. Finance charges.

including premiums payable of settlernent or redernption are accounted lilr on accnral basis

and are added to the carrying amount ofthe instrument to the extent that they are not settled

in the period in which they arise. Loan interest accruing during the construction ofa project

is capitalised as part ofthe cost ofthe project.

s) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are carried at amortised cost. r,vhich is

measured at the fair value of contractual value of the consideration to be paid in tuture in

respect ofgoods and services supptied. whether billed to the entity or not, less any payments

made to the suppliers.

l6
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL S1'A'[EMENTS (Continued)

0 Retiretnent benefit obligations

The Company is a member of a defined pension contribilion scheme administered by the

Roberts Insurance Brokers Limited lor all full-time employees where the Con.rpany

contributes I 5% of staff basic pay and the stafl contribut e 7 .5oh of their basic pay monthly.

The company also contributes to the statutory National Social Security Fund (NSSF). This is

a defined contribilion scheme registered under the National Social Security Act. -the

company's obligation under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated fionr

time to time and is currently at Kshs.l,080 per employee per month employee per month.

u) Provislon for staffleave pay

Employees' entitlements to annual leave are recognised as they accrue. A provision is rnade

tbr the estimated liability for annual leave at the reporting date.

v) Excha{ge rate differences

The accounting records are maintained in the functional currency of the primary econonric

envirotlment in which the entity operates, Kenya Shillings. Transactions in foreign

currendies during the yearlperiod are translated into the functional currency using the

exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-

measukd. Any foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such

transadions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and

liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

w) Budget information

The original budget fbr FY 2022 - 2023 was approved by the Board of Directors on 13"1

February 2022. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were rnacle to the

approved budget in accordance with specific approvals fiorrr the Board ol Directors. The

additional appropriations are added to the original budget by the Company uporl receiving

the respective approvals in order to conclude the flnal budget.

17
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'IS (Continued)

w) Budget information (Continued)
The entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual incorne and expenditure

disclosed in the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis

using a classification based on the nature ofexpenses in the statement offinancial performance,

whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were

recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same

basis as the approved budget.

A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved

budget. is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In

addition to the Basis diff'erence. adjustments to amounts in the flnancial statements are also

made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of

the financial statements and the approved budget.

Capital expenditure budget disclosure

There was a budget of Kshs. 3,450,286 for capital expenditures. Out of the Kshs. 6.700,3 3 I

expended under capital expenditure, Kshs. 4,174.463 was from donor funds (Water Sector Trust

Fund) for construction of Kyuso Public Sanitation Facility.

The Company therefore, from its budget spend Kshs. 2,525,868 for capital expenditures, which

was within the approved budget.

x) Service concession arrangements

The Company analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in

determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular,

where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement. the Company recognizes that

asset when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services the operator must provide

together with the asset, to whom it must provide them, and at what price. In the case of assets

other than 'whole-of-life' assets, it controls. through ownership, beneficial entitlement or

otherwise - any significant residual interest in the asset at the end of the arrangement. Any

assets so recognized are measured at their fair value. To the extent that an asset has been

recognized, the Company also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash

consideration paid or received.

l8
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For the ycar ended Junc 30,2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

y) Comparative figures

Where ngcessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigued to conform to the required changes in presentation.

z) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end *,ith a significant intpact on the

financial Btatements for the year ended Jr,rne 30.2023.

5 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The prepuation of the Conrpany's financial statements in conformity u,ith IFRS requires

management to make judgnrents, estimates and assumptions that aft'ect the reported amounts ol'

revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end

of the reporting period. However. uncefiainty about these assumptions and estimates coulci

result in outcomes that require a rnaterial adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or

liability aflected in future periods.

a) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at

the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The

Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial

statementt were prepared. However. existing circumstances and assumptions about tirture

developments may change due to market changes or circurnstances arising beyond the control

of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

i) Bad debts

All debts which are three years and above have been treated as bad debts. Bad debts are rvritten

off when all reasonable steps to recover them have failed.

ii) Prior events

There w'efe no prior year events and/or adjustments during the period.

iii) Nature of Capital reserve

Capital reserves were inherited liom Tana & Athi Rivers Development Authority when the

Company took over operations. They represent inherited debtors, customer deposits and

creditors.

l9
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
iv) Liquidity risk management

KIMWASCO Board of Directors made a resolution on 71312017 that it would pay Tanathi

Water Services Board accumulated lease fee upto301512013 whenthe County Government of

Kitui took over as the principal, water services having been devolved to county governments.

iv) Liquidity risk management (Continued)

The accurnulated lease fee from 2008 when TAWSB was incorporated to 30171201 3 was Kshs.

5,894,026. TAWSB was informed about the Boards resolution through a letter dated 30/3/2016

in which an undertaking was made to pay the debt in instalments of Kshs. 400.000 per month.

The debt was cleared in June 2018 and TAWSB informed through a letter dated 10/7/201 8.

Inviewofthesefacts,thelicenseeremunerationofKshs. 19,164,981 whichisanaccumulation

from July 2013 to June 2017 ought to have been written off. It is treated as a non-current debt

until it is written off.

i) Water deposits

Water deposits are charged to customers when applying for new water connection.

There is a water deposits account where these funds are retained until a customer requests to

terminate his/her water account with the Company, in the event that the water deposit is

refunded back after all bills have been cleared. This fund is treated as a liability to the

Company.

Proceeds of water meters sold to customers used to be deposited at the Water deposits account

at Equity bank until end of Financial Year 201612017 . The total amount for water meter sales as

at that period was Kshs. 1,670,500. The Company has been using these funds to buy meters fbr

re-sale and since the amount is not refundable to customers, journals were passed to transfer the

balance from the deposits account and retain it at the collection account where it will be used as

a revolving fund for purposes of re-stocking water meters.

b) Useful lives and residual values

i) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Critical estimates are made by the management in determining the useful lives of property, plant

and equipment and intangible assets. This is the basis on which the depreciation and

amortization rates applied on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets respectively

are determined.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ii) Impairment

On the reporting date, the company reviews the carrying an'rounts of its assets to deterrnine

whether there is any objective evidence that those assets have suft-ered an inrpairment loss.

ii) Impairtnent (Continued)

ll any such evidence exists. the recoverable alnount of the asset is estinrated in order to

determinethe extent of the impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estinrate the recoverable

amount of an individual asset. the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

c) Provision for doubtful debts

Provision for doubtful debts is calculated at l7o ofthe net debtors.

nce sheet notes

under balance sheet with notes referred to as CIE refer to the statements ol Changes In

Equity as the reference point.

e) Restated figures in the Financial statements

Upon introduction of the new IFSR reporting template, the comparative figures in the

Financial statements have been restated where applicable to conform to the new reporting

template.

2l
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NOTES'tO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)

I0l 103,72{

7 GITANTS FROM'I'IIE GOVERNMENT & O'I'I IEIT DEVELOPMEN'I' PAIT'I'N IiIt.S

4.063,406

Analysis of gronts received
2t't2112022

l)escri tio n 2022t2tJ23 202U2022
Kshs Kshs

Water sales - Billin S 80.876,528 76.483.082

Water sales - Kiosks 16,806,406 13.021,983

Water sales - Boreholes 4,183,230 1.809,671

Water sales - Tankerin 13,530,035 I 0.5 I 2,61 8

Billin for other services 2.025,500 2.276.370
'l'ota I 117,121,699

Dcscri tion 2022121)23 21t2U2022
Kshs Kshs

Coun Government of Kitui Electricit 24.986,368 33.491.92:l

Tanathi Water Works Dev. A enc Drou ht Miti tion) 1.000.000

County Government of Kitui (Drought Mitigation) 14,I l0
22,760,015

Count I .5 r"+.5 1 7

Cout-t Governrnent of Kitui CIPRA - Water su I r4.600.000
,+.082.91 3

'l'ot:t I 29.'083,391 11,129,922

Name of the entity
sending the grant

Amount
recognized in the

Statement of
Comprehensive

I ncome

Amount
dclf,rretl

undcr
dcferred

incomc

Amount
recognised

in capital
fund

'I'ot:tl

grant
income

during the
year

CGoK(Electricity) 24,986,368 24.986.368 33,491,923

TWWDA (Drought
Mitigation)

I.000.000

4.063,406CGoK (Drought
Mitigation)

l4,l l0 l4.l l0

WSTF (CLSG) 22.760.015

CGoK (CIPRA -
Sanitation)

L

1.511.51 7

CGoK (CIPRA -
Water supply)

r4.600.000

Water Sector Trust
Fund (CIPRA -

Sanitation)

4,082.913 4.082.9 r 3

'l'otal 25,000,{78 -1,082,91 3 29,083,,f 9l 77,129,922

22

6 OPEII.ATING REVENUE

)

Water Sector Trust Fund (CLSG)

Government of Kitui (CIPRA - Sanitation)

)

Water Sector Tmst Fund (CIPRA - Sanitation)
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lior the year endcd .Iunc 30, 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'I'S (Continued)

8 OTHER INCOME

9 FINANCE INCOME

IO STAFF COSTS

II GENEII.AL AND OPERATIONS EXPENSES

Dcscription 2022t2023
Kshs Kslts

Public toilot lease 42,000 42.000

Fines and penalties 276.608 I 85.149

New connection charge r,896,2s4 1,084,61 l
'I'ota I 2,214,862 l,3l I ,760

Dcscription 2022t2023 2n21t2022
Kshs Kshs

lnterest inconre liom fixed deposit 702,588
'I'otal 702,588

Desc ription 202lt2t)22
Kshs

Gross salary and allou'ances 30.997,125 27,644,096

Casual workers' wages |,157,994 999.359

Medical insurance schenres 2.688,759 2,287,60s
104.800Ernployers contribution to social security schemes 257,t20

Employe rs contribution to pension schemes 3,000,694 2,905,328

Gratuity provisions 424.857 377,229
Top - up allowance 33 5,450 425.400

Clornmission - Kiosk and boreholes operators 3,649,891 3.947,309

Staff welfare 937.695 953.003

Total J3,-119,585 39,641,129

Descri ption 2022t2023 2t)2U2t)22
Kshs Kshs

Chemicals 2.643,472
Electricity 53,046,652 47,698,831

F uel. oil and lubricants 9, r 13,089

Office supplies / Stationery/ Photocopy 581.353 503,749
'I'cle 

cr.rm nrun ication 553.488 534.324
Postage and courier 26,1 1 0 26.t07
Water 31,350 123.860

Insurance 65t,047 682,629

Rent 3 12,000 3 12,000

2022t2023

202U2022

Kshs

l.865.900

5,403,224

J)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Ciontinucd)

I I GENERAL AND OPERATIONS EXPENSES, Continucd...

Provision tbr audit fees

Tax - VAT and enalties

'l'ota 
I

12 tsOAII.D I'XPENSES
202U2022

l)escription 2022t2023 2tJ2U2022
Kshs Kshs

Hire of equipment and vehicles 87.500 49.910

Domestic traveling and subsistence 3.803,369 3.800. r50
Staff training and development 2,980.944 2,936,501

Security services 2.4 r 5.000 2.159.774

Pubticity and advertising 345,158 567.234
Audit fees 232,000 232.000

Consultancy fees 60.700 320.600

Licensing and levies 1,872,708 l.l I 1.93-5

Donations/CSR 157.000 99.360

Hospitality expenses r 61.580 47 t .855

Subscription fees i8&6oo I zzt.tt+
Provision for doubtful debts 217.966 248.242

232.000
I 7,814 8i.561

Perm its 50,700 50.700

Unifbrms 496.150

Water testing 49,120

Purchase of bulk water 3 58.400

Strategic plan implementation 921.450 r.863.8e3

News papers 19,500 'l R 11rl

Office general expenses 30.680 56.632

Others: -Drought mitigation administration expenses 5.077.586
-WSTF project expenses s68.483 20.7 61.8s7

8l,993,983 97,539,9611

Dcsc riptio n 2022t2023
Kshs Kslrs

Chairperson honoraria 420,000 295,000

Sitting allowances
Board strategic governance

t.726,500 r.513.800
1.106.0(x)

Organizational assessment and staff audit 455.000

Board medical cover 36,000

Total 2,182,500 3.,J69.,lJ00

]I_-t

I

-l



r the eitr

AMI}I'ITE

nu:rl Repo

n 2022t2023 202y2022
Kshs Kshs

qr.ripment 4,282,958 2,336,250
lral networks 5,570,960 3,986,907
cles 6,975,850 5,262,468
pment maintenance 32t,210 321.896
L building maintenance 79.000 230,900

202y2022

l2 r38 12117,229,978

2022/2023
Kshs Kshs

lant and equipment 8,057,823 5, r 76.860

5,I 76,8608,057,823

2022t2023
I(s hs Kshs

CS 123,601 1 )) )O)

123,60 r 122,292

O1'ES'IO

MAINT

DIiPITE

I.'INANC

F

INGI WA'I'EI{ AND SANI'[ATION COMPANY LIMITED

and Financial Statenrents
Junc 30 2023e

I

E FINANCIAL S'[ATEMEN'IS (Continued)

CE trXPENSES

TION AND AIT.MOIITIZA'I'ION I'XPIlNSES

COST

I

I

2t)21t2022

25

Offlce

'l'otal

[)cscription

'l'otal

I)escription

Bank

l'otal
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Annual Reports and Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
I6(a) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Assets with estimated value of Ksh. 630,482,219 as al 2OO5 were handed over to TAWSB by TARDA in 2009. Kiambere - Mwingi

Water & Sanitation Company Ltd has been operating these assets since May 2009 although they have not been handed over to the

company officially. These assets have not bcen included in the financial statements.

l0l;rl

56.409.628

6 708.t90

8.963. t00

71.0tto.9 t ti

30.i38.1 51

{r.05 7.821

Jn.195.977

13.(r8{.9{l

Propert lant and e ul ment include the followin items that are full de reciated

\\ '

1,ab

equiDmrnt

Treatment
plant &
cquipment

(lompute rs
& rela(ed
equiDment

\l ater
meters

l lolo r
r ehiclcs

\Ii)lor
cvclcs

Oflicc
equipmenl.
furniture &
fittings

llls0nrJ
trAt(r'
(ank

Deccntralised
trea(mcnl
facilin\\ at(r

kiosks

[. ](r ated
slccl
rr a(cr
(ank

:0l J

2.500h r2.50% 2:%t2 5% 33j%2.50.h 25% 25v.250%l)cpreciation rate 10"/. 2 50%

( ()s t olt
\ ,\ Lt \,l Io\

4 417.1483.276.83021.t40.157 2.7 53.652 2.7 49.7 232.225.983 9.095.6893.300.200 5.189.17 tAt July l. 2022
4. t 74.463241.300 t.189.14272.000n ddilions 260.500

60.000r.088.000620.500 511.600Revaluatron
.t,615,6J1 {.t7{.{63

r.59.r.lill
{(}5-?52

J.l:{. r 52 .1.517.(r2J (r.15{.5729.095.6lt9
27.862.3513.560.700 5J89.17r 2.225.981At Junc 10.2013

t)t.t,ltu( 1,\ I l()\
2.916.175 280.9102 40.1.3,16 t.?52.0512?8.250 86ti.961 18.169. r072.00.1. r40 9J.',]. t0_lAr July 1.2022

37.906
I r t.916

1.542.22.1 39.87 t4 838 :i0t 3il.r75 -l lilt.6205 5.650
22.1 392

330.020
Charge for thc year

.t39.3J1 3 t.8.16 {33.5J2
2.110.(r7J 1,.t58J99t.096.153

2.755.521r.077.8.1J
331.tt99

,\l ,,unc J(1.2(123 2.JlJ.l (,0

t.t6.906 .l.l I l.{r9l {.t71.{61r.696.t73 t.l55.Jlt06ltt.63r t.396.950r.1r92.08.1 7.999J16 {.85J.9J9r.226.5{0 lJ l l.JJ8

NT'I'R(X)K
vA l.l iU Al.lune
10.2023

Normal annual
de preciation charge

Description

N/A
'I'otlI

1r.

1.594.821 405,752

168. t 85

6.650.000

32 r.606399.1i1

t 34.129

?1.007.{0tt

Cost or valuation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL S'I'ATEMENTS (Continucd)

l6(b) PROPERTY, PLANT AND tIQtIIPMENT (Continued)

Property. plant and equipment include the following items that are fully depreciated

Lab

Lab
eq ui0ment

Treatment
plant &
€quipment

Computers
& r€lated
equipment

Water
meters

l\tasonry
water
tank

Decentral
ised
treatment
facilitv

Motor
veh icles

Office
equipment,
fu rn itu re
& fittings

Motor
cvc lcs

Water
kiosks

Elevated
steel water
tank

2022

33.3o/o 2.50v. t2.50Yol2.5o.uo2.50o/o 2.50o/o 2.50orcDcpreciation ratc r0%

COST OR
VALUATION

2-795_600.105.7 5 29.095.6119 t6.21r.037 2.524.8485.389.17 t 2.225.983Al lulv l. 2021 1.300.200
I .681.tt484.929.320 221.87 5n dd itions

,105,752 4,171,1t82.753,652 2,7 49,723 3.276,tit0 1.594.8232.225,981 9,095.6893,300.200

I) I.- I'R I.-('IAT IO \
359.602 l]9.78()2.t21.796 l..lolt.l38 2.328.667222.600 641.569 I 5.150.337808.17{

50.7 t939.87 r227 .392 3.01 8.770 276.550 587.50tt134.729 5 5.650Charge for the ycar

321.606399,47318.169.107 zlol*rlo I r.zsz.oss I z.sto.tzs943.101 868.961At June J0. 2022 2.00{.1{0

4,t55.8{2991.670 360.655 r. r 9s,3s02,97 t ,250 l{9.306r.296.060 4.rl.l6.06ti 1.911 .7 33
NET BOOK VALUE
At June 30,2022

Total

49.4't 5.225

6.93,1.403

56.409,628

25.091.404

5.176.860

30.268.264

26.14t,364

Description Cost or valuation Normal annual
depreciation charge

9,76s.013 2.441,261

Motor c c les 1.163.280 290.820

Cot.n uters and related ut ntcnt r.303.750 434.t49
32.841

20.3 r3

12.657,303 3,219J84Tota l

Llt rnc rtl

27

259o

3.178.470 r.i94.8232.753.652

98.360

5,389,17rAt June 30.2022

230.22 t1.671.t20nr July l. 2021

l I 1.936I {.1.7 I 5110_020

12.1,812a,226,728

280.940278,250

I z r. r +o.ssz

Motor ve hicles

Furniture's & office equipment's 262.728
r 62.502
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets include QuickBooks soffware, Website domain antl an accounling/billing

software costing Kshs. I 10,000, Kshs. 84,500 and Kshs. 2,075,1 19 respectively.

The accounting/billing system (ERP) is expected to be used for inde.finite period of timc antl

therefore has not been amorlized.

llt INVENTORIES
2022

2,729,465
3,980.'565

2{t23

Descri tion 202212023 202y2tJ22

COST Kshs Kshs

At JUI I 2,269,619 2,269,619

Additions
Dis OSAIS

At June 30 2,269,61.) 2,269,619

AMOITTISATION
At JUI I 194,500

Ch e for the ear

Dis osals

lm airment loss

At June 30 194,500 194,500

NtrT BOOK VALUE At June 30 2,075,1l9 2,075,119

l)escriptiun Quantity'(Kgs) Marliet p ricc (Kshs) Amount (K!!!L
Chlorine 2,8s5 340.00 970,700

Lime 1,400 35.00 49.000

Alumn 4,450 52.00 231.400

Other stock iterns
'l'otal

Description Quantity (Kgs) Mnrket price (Kshs) Amount (Kthll
Chlorine I,035 336.40 348.\74

Linie 325 32

-s6

l c.400

Alumn 10.100 565.600

Sub Total 921.171

Treated water balance 7,056.75M3 8 8.3 623,1 n
Other stock items 7)) c)\)
-l'ota 

I 2,210,231

28

Other stock items include pipes antlfitting.s, O/lice stctlionery and v'ater meters

194,500



KIAMBERE MWINGI WATER AND SANITATION COMPANY I,IMITED

Annual Reports and Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAI. STATEMINTS (Continued)

l9(a) TIIADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(i)Trade receivables

(ii) Staff debtors

l9 (b) PREPAYMENTS

Descrip tio n 2022t2023 202U2022
Kshs Kshs

Trade receivables(water billings) (note 26 (b))
Active debtors 9,044,245 12,988, r 6 1

Inactive debtors 22,5t5,949 20,849,339
Less: Bad debts (2,985,487) (3,023,r r8)
Less Suspense accoullt payntents (6,778,131) (4,081,700)

Provision for bad debts (2t7,966) (248,242)
Net trade receivables 21,578,610 26,JttJ,.l-10

Dcscriptio n 2022t2023 202U2022
Kshs

Staff receivables 63,970 65,067
Total 63,,970 65,067

26,549,507Net trade and other receivables 21,642,,590

Dcscription 2022t2023 202y2022
Kshs Kshs

Fuel y'ivo Energy 26,143
Total 26,l.l3

29

Kshs
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Annual Reports and Financial Statements
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NOTBS TO TI-lE FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
19 (c) TRADE RECEIVABLES

Deblors ageing report above includes active, inactive and bad debts

20 BANK AND CASH I}ALANCES

The bulk of the cash at bank was held at Equity Bank limited, thc entity's main bonkers

The rnake - u o bank bulcrnces and short lerm tle o,\'ils is u.t llov,.so

Description 202U2022

At 30th June2023, the ageing analysis of the gross

trade receivables was as follows:
Kshs Kshs

2.637,04s 8,125,026

Between 30 and 60 da s 1,509,836 1,758,545

Between 6l and 90 days 1,433,361 1 )1\ 1))

Between 91 and 120 da S 2,236,,519 1,130,839

Over 120 days 23,144,147 21,587,961

Description 2022t2023 202y2022
Kshs Kshs

Clash at bank \1,730,972 30,601,566

M-pesa Paybill 1,414,908 48e.572

M-pesa Till 34.814

Fixed deposits 13,300,000

Cash in hand 3,784 360

Total 32,48.1,538 3l,091,.198

202U20222022t2023Financial institution
KshsKshsAccount nunrbcra) Clurrent account

790,332140.0591112294120KCB (Collection)
135J22t,040.6460590295549051Equity Bank (Clollection)

9.445.937?05 7190590295548998I:quiti llank ( De posits )

316.3100590280467681 20.521licluitl' tlank (('t.S(;)
14.2490590271483467[:quity Bank ( Drouglit nritigation) l19

1,514,5 I 7Dcluity Bank (CIPI{A - Sanitation)
14,600.00014,857,0120590280541089Equity Bank (CIPRA -Water sLrpply)

1 75.61 0 133.1 160s90295549120Equity Bank (Paying)
280.9920l100398327900Co-operativc Bar.rk 3,665,83l

30,601 ,56617,730,972Sub- total
b) Othcrs(specil-v)

3603,784N/Acasl.r in l.rand

1 ,41 4,908 489.572803650M-pesa Paybill
34,8747205226M-pesa Till

9.600.0000590384139746[:iquity I]ank (Iixed deposits)
0590384139648

.189,9-32
3.700.000

1.1,753,566
it1, Bank (Fixecl cle

Sub- total
posit s )

32',18.1'538 3l ,091 ,l9ttGrand total
30

202212023

Less than 30 days

I

I

0s90280514091 ] 996.644

I
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Annual lteports and Financial Statemcnts
For the ye$r ended June 30, 2023

2I OIIDINAITY SI{AII.E CAPITAL

The Colnpany's amended Memorandum & Articles of Association has been registered by the
RegistrEr of Companies. It provides the County Government of Kitui to own and pay for all
the shates.

22 CAPITAL RESERVES

Dcsc ription 2022t2023 2tJ21t2022

Kshs Kshs
Debtors 6.477.891
Customer deposits ( 1 ,061 ,600)
Creditors (697,346) (6e7,346)
l'otal .1,718,9,15 .1,71 [i,945

6,477,891
( I ,061 ,600

23 WATBR SECTOR'I'RUST FI-INI)

l)escription 2t)21t2022
Kshs Kshs

Balance blf 202212023 31,166,984 29,485,136
Adcl: Receipts 202212023 168.1 85 r.68 r.848
l'otal 3 I ,335,169 3l ,I 66,98-l

21 C]APITAL / DEVELOPMENT GII.ANT
Dcscriptio n 2022t2023 202U2022

Kshs Kshs
Balancd blf 202212023 21,577,686 5.463.169
Add: Receipts 202212023 4,082,913 l6.l t.1.517
Total 25,660,599 21,577,686

l)escription 2022t2t)23 202U2022
Kshs Kshs

r\uthorizcd:
5.000 ordinary shares of Kshs.20 par value each r 00.000 100,000
Totul 100,000 100,000

lssued and fulll' paid:
5,000 ordinary shares ofKshs.20 par value each 100,000 100,000

3t

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202212023
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

25 (a) LONG TERM TRADE LIABILITIES
The long term trade liabilities relate to accumulated lease fee fron, 2008 when Tanathi Water

Services Board (TAWSB), now referred to as Tanathi water works Development Agency

(TAWWDA) was incorporated to 30/7/2013'

2s (b) TAWWDA

26 TRADEANDOTHERPAYABLES
2u2U2022

27 WATER DEPOSITS

The Company u,as incorPorated in

accumulated bank charges amoun

balance ol' the Customer dePosils

charges

28 REVALUATION LOSS

De scri tion

May 2009 and since then, th

ting to Kshs. 96,258 (MaY

reportetl under Note 20 i

e cuslomer dePosits ctccounl hus

2009 - June 2023). 7'he bunk

s ncr o.f'lhe trcc'ttrnultttcd bunk

2021t2022202212023Descri tio n
KshsKshs

19.764,981
Tanathi Water Works DeveloPment 19.764,981

remuneratlon

Agency - Licensee

19,76-l 98176-1,981Total

2u2212023tionDescri
KshsKshs

1,r55,0946.505,220ables
2,605,3667,087,508a Power & Li Com al-tKen htin

869.9082,112,499oll deductionsPa
446.000678.000Office of the Auditor General
377,229424.857Stafl creditors
447.102624.1 88ments - debtorsPre a

f 900,69911,132'l otltl

2022t2023tionl)csc ri
KshsKshs

9,248,6959.542,195Balance b/l
358,500437,000Water de oslts
65,00065,000Water d osits refund

9 5{2,1959,91{ 195Total

202U2u222022121)23
KslrsKshs

19,157,336Cost
8,963,100Revalued cost

10,19.1 236Total

)-

l9

Trade

72

2t)2112027
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29 CUSTOMEITDEPOSI'I'I{EFUNI)

30 IIETAINED EAIi.NING
202il2022

Retained eamings are r.rtilised to finance the Company's business activities

3I DI{OUGHT MITIGATION

4,063.406

32 CGoK - CIPRA (SANITATION / WATER SUPPLY)

33 ELECTRICITY PAYMEN'TS

The C'onlpany operoles on a subsidized tari/f where the County Government of Kitui
pays z59l Kictmbere Treatment Plant electricity bills and the Company pays 25% o.f rhe bill.s

The C'om'fiany pait) electricity bills amounting to Kshs. 796,577 above the requires 25%r,

-)J

Description 2022t2023 202U2022
Kshs Kshs

Water deposits refund 65,000 65.000
65,00065,000

I)escription 2022t2023
Kshs Kshs

(2s,07s,452)Opening balance (2,933,437)
Total comprehensive income
'l'otal

( 13.809.166) 22,142,0t5
( I 6,742,603) (2'933',137)

Dcscription 2022t2023 2112U2022

Kshs Kshs
Tanathi Water Works Development Agency
County Government of Kitui 14,1l0

l.l,l l0 5,063,{06

Description
Kshs Kshs

I.514.5 I 7CGoK Fund - CIPRA public sanitation
CGoK Fund - CIPRA water supply 14,600,000

l6,l l.l,5l7

Q9pqr1!ion 21J2U2022
Kshs Kshs

Payme(t ofproduction electricity bills 796,577 24,143.4t5
Total 796,577 2-l,l -13,{ l5

a

2022t2023

'l'otal

l,000,000

'l'otal

2022t2023 202U2022

-l'ota 
I
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3.1 NOTES TO I'HE S'TATEMENT OI.'CASH FLO\\'S

lncrease /decrease in inventories

35 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) Government of Keny'a

Related parties include:
i) The Parent Ministry
ii) County Government of Kitui
iii) Tanathi Water Works Development Agency
iv) Water Sector Trust Fund
v) Kenya Integrated Water, Sanitation & Hygiene Project
vi) Shareholders
vii) Key ntanagement
viii) Board of directors

2022t2023 202U2022
Kshs Kshs

(a) tleconciliation of opcrating profit/(loss) to cash
generated from/(used in) operations

Profit or loss before tax (3,846,930) 19.079763
Depreciation/Amortizat ion 8.057.823 5.176.860

Operating profit/(loss) before rvorking capital
changes

.1,210,893 21,256,623

r ,7 r 0,328 (t,424.877)
(lncrease)/decrease in trade and other receivables (4.906.927) (4.483,660)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables I 1,531,573 ( 14,303,2 r2)
Increase/(decrease) in water deposits 372.000 293.500

Cash generated from/(used in) operations 12,917,867 -1,338,371

(b) Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank 17,730,972 30.601.566
Cash at M-pesa paybill I ,414,908 189.572
Cash at M-pesa till 34.874
Cash at Fixed deposits 13.300.000
Cash in hand 3.784 3(r0

Balance at end of the t,ear 32,-181,538 3l ,091 ,198

1.1

I
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36

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
'l'ransactions lvith rclated arties

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The entfty's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity
risks and effects of changes in foreign currency. The company's overall risk nranagement
programme fbcuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to
minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable
levels of risk. The company does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that
credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history.
The conlpany's financial risk managenrent objectives and policies are detailed belor,",:

( i) Credit risk
The Company has exposure to credit risk. which is the risk that a counterparty will be

unable to pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises lrom cash and cash
equivalents, and deposits with banks. as well as trade and other receivables and
alvailable-for-sale f-rnanc i al i nvestments.

$anagement assesses the credit quality of each cuslomer. taking into accounr irs

{nancial position. past experience and other tactors. Individual risk limits are ser

$sed on internal or external assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors.
The amounts presented in the statement of financial position are net of allowances for

fubtful receivables, estimated by the company's management based on prior
ekperience and their assessment of the current economic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the flnancial statemeuts
rtpresenting the entity's maximunr exposurc to credit risk without taking account of
the value of any collateral obtained is made up as follows:

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they
cOntinue trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is mininral and the
allowance for uncollectible amounts that the conlpany has recognised in the financial
statements are considered adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

35

2022t2023 202U2022
hshs I(shs

il Grants from the Government & relatcd partics
Grants from County Government of Kitui 25,000,478 53,669,846
GrEnts from Tanathi Water Works Development Agency I,000,000
Grants from Water Sector Trust Fund 4,082.913
Total 29,083,-191

22.760.075
77,129,,921

b) Expenses incurred on behalfofrelatcd partv
Payments of electricity 24,986,368 33,491,923
Paynrents ol- c1rought nritigation expenscs
Payments of CLSG expenses 568.483 22.443.705
l'ota I 25,55-1,851 60,999,03{

5.063.406
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I

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continue<t)

The entity has significant concentration ofcredit risk on amounts due from 2009

The board of directors sets the company's credit policies and objectives and lays down
parameters within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

ii) Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility fbr liquidity risk managernent rests with the entity's directors. who
have built an appropriate liquidity risk managenlent framework for the management of the
entity's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
entity manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of fbrecasts and actual cash
flows.

iii) Capital Risk Management
The objective of the entity's capital risk managenlent is to safeguard the Board's ability to
continue as a going concern. The entity capital structure comprises of the fbllowing funds:

2022t2023 202U2022
I(s hs

Retained eamir.r s (r3,809,166) 19,049.598

4.71 8.9.15Capital reserve 4.7 t8.94s

'l'otal funds (9,090,221) 23,768,5{3

Total borrowin S

i2.484.538

Net debt/ excess cash and cash e uivalents 23,394,317
(iearin ratio (Equitl ) 35'7.1)" lf 0.0,2,

3 I .091 .498

5+.8()0.01 I

INCOPORATION
The Company is incorporated in Kenya under the Kenyan Companies Act and is domiciled in
Kenya.

38 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
]'here were no material ad.lusting and non- ad.lusting events alter the reporting pcriod.

39 CURRENCY
'[he financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs)

36

Kshs I

Less: cash and bank balances
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t,' r the ear e ded June 30, 2023
A PENDIX I PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AT]DI'IOR ITECOMMENDATIONS

The following is the summary of issues raised by the cxternal auditor. and rnanagement comrnents
that u'ere provided to the auditor. We have nonrinated tbcal persons to resolve the various issues as
slrown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the issues to be resolved.

Refcrence
No. on the
cxternal

audit
Ileport

Issue /
Observations
from Autlitor

Focal Point

l)ers0n to
resoh'e the

issuc (Mrrre
uttl

lesignuliotr)

Reverrue
Accountant

Managing
Director

M anaging
Director

Status:
(Resolvel /

Not
Resolvel)

'f imelra nr e:
(Pul u tlulc
whett you
e-\Pccl llte
iss ue lo hc
resolved)

Long
Outstanding
Receivables

Man:rgenrent contnrents

The Company is making
efforts and have been put in
place to recover the long
outstanding debts. These
measures include;
i. Performing revenue drives
ii. Disconnection from tee
i ii. Allowing instalnrent
payments
iv. Prornpt disconnection of
due accounts to avoid
further growtlr of the
receivables.

The Company engaged a

valuer who revalued the
fu lly depreciated assets.

All assets are now stated at

their fair book value.

The Management has

engaged the County
governnrent to take over the
assets lrorn the Tanath i

Water Works Development
Agency as per the
recorn mendat ion.
The Conrpany is working
towards resolv irrg all prior
year aud it matters as

ind icated in the Management
comments section of each

unresolved aud it nratter
The Company developed
nerv tariffs rvhich have been

subrnitted to WASREB for
Not

I Resolved

Not
Resolved

Resolved

Not reso lved

Not
Resolved

Dec 202i

Dec 2023

June 202,1

)
Understated
Prcperty, Plant
and Equipment

I

3

4

resolved
or Year Audit
tters

U

I)

d

S

U of Out-
d Tariff
cture

Managing
Director

e

a roval

37
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I,'ocal Point
pcrson to

resolvc the
issuc (Nrrlc

utttl
desigtrrttiott)

I

Reference
No. on the
external

aud it
Report

Iss ue /
Observations
from Auditor

Non-Revenue
Water

N on-
Cornpliance
with Law on

Ethnic diversity

Status:
(Rextlvel /

Nol
Rcsolved)

Not
Resolved

Not
Resolved

'Iinrcfrirnrc:
(Pul a dule
ttlt c tt -y'o tt
a-\pccl lltc
iss ue lo hc
re so lve l)

J Lrne 202.15

Managenrenl cornnrcnls

Measures taken to address

the NRW are in line with the

MOU signed between the

Governor on behalf of tlte
WSPs and the PS Water and

Sanitation - Ministry of
Water.

I M itigation measures that
have been taken include:
.Sustained leak repair
including burying of
exposed pipelines and

relocating line prone to
darnages.
.Replacenlent of Faultl and

old rneters,
.Continuous nronitoring oI
water connections to
identify any nreter tanrperirrg
or illegal use of water and

irnposing heavy penalties of
culprits.
. lnstallation ol zonal
meters
. Autornation of
comrnunal water d ispen s ing
points
Most of these current stafT

were inherited frorn TARDA
and it was not possible to

conform to the ethnicity
regulation in the short term.

However, effort is being
rnade to contbrnt gradually
as ne\! slatl' get enrplol'cc1

'f echnical
Manager

Managing
Director

AN

Iti

6



a

I
a

KIAMBEITE MWINGI WAl-IiR AND SANIl'A'tION COMPANY LIMITED
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Iocal Point
person to

rcsolve the
issuc (Natnc

urttl
lesignutiort)

Ilnnaging l)irerctor

Managenrcnt conr rnents

The Company had not meet
the two third gender rule
because of historical reasons
including the fact that some
of the staff were inherited
from TARDA. The technical

i nature of the company's

I operations also tends to
attract few fentale applicants
tbr vacant positions.
However, the Conrpany rv ill
adopt affirnrative action in
future recruitment to ensu re

the two third gender rule is
aclr ieved progressively.
The Board of Directors and

the HR Departrnent of the
Kitui County governntent
deve loped a schenre of
service fbr the cornpany
which was approved in

Augtrst 2022 and is now in
use.

The Cornpany developed a

Risk Managenrent Policy
which is awaiting approval
by the Board of Directors.

lloard (lha

Reference
No. on the
cxternll

audit
Repo rt

Issue /
Observations
fronr Auditor

Compliance
rvith Two-
Thirds Gender
Ru le

Lack of Schenre
of Service

Lack of Risk
Managernent
Policy and a
Disaster
Recovery Plan

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

'f imefra nre
(Itul a dtte
when;ou
expccl lltc
iss ue lo hc
rex vctl)

l Managing
Director

N/A

Revenue

Accountant

Not
Resolved

Not
Resolved

AN

NResolved

Dec 2023

IJ

)

i)

Guidnnce Notes:

Use the satne reference numbers as contained in the external audit report;
Obtain th( "lssue/Observation" and '"management comments", requiied above, from final
extemal a$dit report that is signed by Management;
Before apflroving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point persons
within yorfr entity responsible for implementation of each issue;
Indicate ttle status ot"'Resolved" or "Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this report to the
Oltlce of the Auditor Ceneral.

(iii)

( iv)

(

q4ri . .r>^,,..o. s$fl tu^g S i gnar,rcSignatu

39

Date
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